          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3

             CITY OF NEW YORK

          4  -------------------------------x

             THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          5

                       of the

          6

             COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          7  (Held Jointly With)

             COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          8  -------------------------------x

                            October 3, 2005

          9                 Start:  10:10 a.m.

                            Recess: 11:05 a.m.

         10

                            City Hall

         11                 Committee Room

                            New York, New York

         12

         13       B E F O R E:

         14              JOHN LIU

                              Chairperson, Transportation

         15                   Committee

         16              EVA MOSKOWITZ

                               Chairperson, Education Committee

         17

         18              COUNCIL MEMBERS:   Joseph Addabbo

                                            James Sanders

         19                                 Larry Seabrook

                                            Helen Sears

         20                                 Sara Gonzalez

                                            Michael Nelson

         21                                 Leroy Comrie

         22

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         17 Battery Place -  Suite 1308

         25              New York, New York 10004

                              (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             Sung Soo Kim

          4  Small Business Council

          5  Long Deng

             New York Chinese Supermarket Association

          6

             Quan Yang

          7  US Chinese Chamber of Commerce

          8  Marty Oestreicher

             Chief Executive, Office of School Support Services

          9  NYC Department of Education

         10  Howard Altschuler

             Deputy Commissioner

         11  Procurement And Technical Services

             NYC Department of Transportation

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            3

          1  TRANSPORTATION AND EDUCATION COMMITTEES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Good morning.

          3  Welcome to today's hearing of the City Council's

          4  Committee on Transportation.

          5                 Mr. Oestreicher, I want to thank you

          6  for coming, but we're going to take care of a little

          7  bit of business just before, if you will bear with

          8  me just for a few minutes.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 My name is John Liu. I have the

         11  privilege of chairing the Committee on

         12  Transportation, and I'm delighted to be joined by

         13  Council Members Joe Addabbo from Queens, Sara

         14  Gonzalez from Brooklyn, Helen Sears from Queens, and

         15  we will be joined by other members shortly.

         16                 Today's hearing has been convened for

         17  two purposes. First, a relatively brief matter where

         18  we will be voting to override the Mayor's veto of

         19  Intro. 699, which requires that stoopline stands be

         20  permitted contingent upon certification that such

         21  stands do not obstruct pedestrian traffic.

         22                 The second item, and the substance of

         23  today's hearing, is a hearing on Intro. 702-A, which

         24  requires the placement of two-way radios, cell

         25  phones and tracking devices on all City school
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          2  buses.

          3                 We are joined by distinguished

          4  members of the Department of Education, who will be

          5  testifying on 702-A. Mr. Oestreicher, the Chief

          6  Executive for School Support Services, and Howard

          7  Altschuler, the Deputy Commissioner for Procurement

          8  and Technical Services at the Department of

          9  Transportation.

         10                 I want to thank both gentlemen for

         11  joining us today, and ask them to bear with us for

         12  just a few minutes, as we conduct a vote on

         13  overriding the Mayor's veto of Intro. 699. I've been

         14  informed that we do have a member of the public who

         15  would like to testify on 699. He has testified on

         16  this bill before, but out of deference to him and

         17  his organization, I would ask him to join us at the

         18  witness table at this time. Mr. Sung Soo Kim, and

         19  any colleagues that you have.

         20                 MR. KIM: Thank you so much, Chairman

         21  Liu.

         22                 Finally, finally we have a chance to

         23  officially, publicly address our concern to this

         24  Committee.

         25                 There are six or seven trade
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          2  organizations in the City who are opposing this

          3  bill, along with concerned New Yorkers. I just send

          4  out opposition paper earlier to each of 51 Council

          5  members two weeks ago, and I just handed in a brief

          6  memo today to summarize our opposition.

          7                 All in all, we just spend one hour,

          8  no, I'm sorry, one minute. Next to me is Mr. Long

          9  Deng. He is the President of US Chinese Chamber of

         10  Commerce, and also President of New York Chinese

         11  Supermarket Association. Next to him, the left, is

         12  Mr. Yang. He is the Executive Director of that

         13  organization.

         14                 All right, this is one of the rare

         15  fast track bill passed the last time at the

         16  Committee, and the community was not allowed to have

         17  a public hearing, just by the hearing at all.

         18                 All right, we really want to ask this

         19  Council why Speaker Miller allowed, favored the

         20  Chairman John Liu to have this fast track passage

         21  procedure of this bill? Here are some reasons.

         22                 We had a meeting. Ungrounded, there

         23  is a general complaint register approaching area

         24  (sic), and this bill try to extrapolate the

         25  Flushing-based issue problem into Citywide issue,
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          2  and I carefully looked it up. You see the Sunday New

          3  York Sun article, DOT honestly, they cannot

          4  implement this methodology to apply to have the

          5  on-site analysis of traffic volume, pedestrian

          6  traffic volume, you need to amend your method

          7  criteria and the rating, which is very dangerous,

          8  risky, increasing the level of uncertainty of

          9  operating stoopline stand, stoopline stand which

         10  cannot be more than 30 percent of sales volume. So,

         11  killing stoopline stand through this unduly

         12  procedure criteria applied, it is really just like

         13  you threw the stone into the lake or pond, it kills

         14  froggy, innocent froggy is killed. We're expecting

         15  around 200 froggies killed out of this bill.

         16                 This is mostly new immigrant business

         17  source of income, minorities, especially

         18  Asian-Americans, and Hispanic too. This is

         19  pass-along. Councilman, Chairman Liu said no, no,

         20  no, DOT has enough money, but we were told

         21  numerously through the City agency and the other

         22  experienced people, no way you will get the

         23  pass-along fee, five to seven times increase. Why

         24  should all the innocent, you know, the licensees pay

         25  this unnecessary piece?
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          2                 Existing Code is 17 items, function

          3  more than sufficient to guarantee safety of

          4  pedestrian. For example, you came through three

          5  channels, can revoke the license of problematic

          6  stoopline stand. Commissioner of Consumer Affairs on

          7  serious cases, based on complaint, can revoke the

          8  license, and DOT also can recommend the license. So,

          9  the existing code is properly working.

         10                 Last thing. We'd like to have

         11  attention of honorable Council members to extend

         12  the, one more time, not to vote this time, and then

         13  talk with us to amend this bill, Intro. 699-A. With

         14  the three items: Number one, there are some

         15  loopholes in the existing code that should be

         16  patched up.

         17                 Number two, instead of glamourizing

         18  Citywide issue like this, case-by-case, if you found

         19  serious problem respecting the function and

         20  authority of the respective community boards,

         21  installing local sidewalk safety review boards, this

         22  board we recommend to rigorously enforce the law on

         23  these problems stores, case-by-case.

         24                 Thank you so much.

         25                 Do you want to say something?
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          2                 MR. DENG: Yes, I'm sorry, my language

          3  is very poor. Okay, I --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes, Mr. Deng,

          5  please clearly identify yourself.

          6                 MR. DENG: My name is Long Deng.

          7                 (Through an interpreter.) My name is

          8  Long Deng, I'm from the district of John Liu,

          9  Flushing area.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Pull the mic closer

         11  to your mouth.

         12                 MR. DENG: (Through an interpreter.)

         13  First of all, I'll just say I respect John Liu, and

         14  I believe, you know, I don't think there is a safety

         15  issue of the stoopline stand.

         16                 The Department of Consumer Affairs

         17  record shows there's no complaint in Flushing area.

         18  There is some extended license owners, extend the

         19  license to the sidewalk, but I believe there is not

         20  more than 20 stores do this.

         21                 I don't understand why you do this

         22  bill, just because of the 20 stores, may be the one

         23  percent of the store, you know, you will suspend or

         24  kill the license maybe more than 20 percent.

         25                 So, you are the immigrant, so because
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          2  of this bill may be more than 10,000 people will

          3  close their door, which will affect more than

          4  100,000 people. Our business, we have a difficult

          5  job, our business. We don't want to stand -- the

          6  Councilman we elected doesn't support our business.

          7                 After Mr. Liu introduced the bill,

          8  we've been contacting many, many Council members.

          9  Many Councilmen understand we can do this

         10  case-by-case. The stoopline owners, you know, they

         11  illegal do something, they have the safety issue, we

         12  can, you know, suspend the license, or, you know,

         13  revoke the license case-by-case.

         14                 I candidly request the Councilmen

         15  understand the difficulty of the new immigrants.

         16                 Thank you for your support.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you for your

         18  testimony and I want to commend you for taking part

         19  of our public hearing today.

         20                 We have a question from Council

         21  Member Sears.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Just a few

         23  issues for clarification, and I was not at the

         24  hearing because I was away, but I was reading where

         25  Mr. Kim, you gave testimony on August 17th.
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          2                 MR. KIM: Yes, after the vote.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: That was a

          4  hearing.

          5                 MR. KIM: No.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: No, wait. You

          7  must clarify for me, because -- on August 17th, this

          8  Committee, I was not present, had a hearing.

          9                 MR. KIM: Yes, Ma'am.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And I'm looking

         11  at the reports of that and you testified at that

         12  hearing along with other individuals.

         13                 MR. KIM: Well, the Committee report

         14  said, (unable to discern due to dialect in

         15  language.) Small Business Congress will testify. But

         16  I did testify, but point is, that Committee was

         17  putting the cart in front of a horse. Means public

         18  hearing was done after vote is posted. After vote.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: No, we don't do

         20  that.

         21                 MR. KIM: It happened. It happened.

         22  What can I do?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Not according

         24  --

         25                 MR. KIM: It's record history.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Council member, just

          3  a point of information.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: At the August 17th

          6  hearing, as well as at numerous other hearings that

          7  we have, the vote was opened before all the

          8  testimony was completed to accommodate the urgent

          9  schedules of some members of the Committee. But the

         10  vote was completed after all testimony was taken.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Oh, okay, thank

         12  you. Thank you for that.

         13                 But there is just a couple of

         14  questions. I don't understand why you would have to

         15  let anybody go. The fact is, we're talking about

         16  rules and regulations. And we're talking about what

         17  basically the law is. For those who are abiding by

         18  that law don't have anything to worry about. And if

         19  the law is strictly to get at those who are not,

         20  which it is, because in many areas, most of the

         21  boroughs, the four boroughs, have this problem, and

         22  it is proliferating very, very rapidly, such that

         23  people, and seniors in particular, cannot walk on

         24  the streets because these so-called stoops have been

         25  pushed further and further out.
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          2                 I would think that there would be

          3  support to be in compliance with this. I spoke with

          4  my community boards, and the fact is that they were

          5  having that problem.

          6                 When you say about a complaint my

          7  answer to you is what it was for the Buildings

          8  Department, the issues that are complaint driven,

          9  people do not give them. They do not give them

         10  because they're constantly afraid of reprisals,

         11  whether it's a commercial area, whether it's a

         12  buildings issue.

         13                 I do not go by complaint driven,

         14  because this City has demonstrated very, very few

         15  complaints. They come from the legislative offices,

         16  they come from the community board. So, to speak

         17  about individuals having complaints and report them,

         18  there's very little that basically do that.

         19                 I also think that if the small

         20  business community has to assist any of you in being

         21  in compliance with this, the Government is there to

         22  help.

         23                 I don't think, and I don't think you

         24  mean that, but this City is made up of immigrants,

         25  and we do not pick and choose what laws we abide by
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          2  because of immigrant status, and I don't think you

          3  mean that, because that is not the way government

          4  works. We don't take the law and pull it apart and

          5  stretch it. The laws are in place for a reason, to

          6  protect the commercial areas, and to protect the

          7  communities at large. And I think that if there are

          8  issues in this bill that need to be looked at, the

          9  Department of Transportation has enormous

         10  flexibility on how they operate, and how they impose

         11  this bill, and this Council is not without assisting

         12  the DOT, and we will do that.

         13                 For those who obey the law, they have

         14  nothing to worry about. For those that do not, they

         15  have a lot to worry about. And they should be in

         16  compliance. So, I understand what you're saying, but

         17  at the same time, this law is doing no more than

         18  asking DOT, as they do with, by the way the

         19  newsstands with DOT operate the same way, and DOT

         20  has to come out and look at every site. And I assure

         21  you, there are more newsstands than there are

         22  stoops. And they don't have a problem in doing that.

         23  The same thing with this bill, it's an interagency.

         24  There are two agencies that have to work with it,

         25  and I think that we can iron the kinks out, but at
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          2  the same time, protect the integrity of the

          3  residents in the area who walk those streets all the

          4  time. They walk the sidewalks, and you cannot get

          5  through in many instances.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

          7  Member Sears.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chair.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Again, I want to

         11  thank Sung Soo Kim and Deng Long and his associate,

         12  Mr. Yang, for attending today's public hearing, and

         13  for the meetings that we have had since August on

         14  this issue, and also to thank you for some animation

         15  with regard to the protests that you have held in

         16  front of my office, and the petition drive that you

         17  have been posting in all your supermarkets. This is

         18  the democratic process, and I want to thank you for

         19  participating in that.

         20                 There has been a great deal of very

         21  important input that you have provided with us,

         22  provided us with in the meetings, and those ideas

         23  are very useful.

         24                 I had pledged to you in my meetings

         25  that once we passed this law, it's a very simple
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          2  straightforward and short law, the Department of

          3  Transportation will be required to formulate and

          4  issue regulations that spell out exactly how they

          5  are going to enforce the law.

          6                 And, of course, this Committee will

          7  conduct strict oversight to make sure that the DOT's

          8  regulations are, not only comply with the legal

          9  requirements that we are imposing through the

         10  legislative process, but we will also make sure that

         11  they come up with regulations that are fair and

         12  pragmatic in the City of New York, and your ideas,

         13  Mr. Kim, in particular, through your most recent

         14  letter, every single one of those points will be

         15  incorporated in the regulations that we will work

         16  with the Department of Transportation to formulate

         17  after this law gets passed.

         18                 I want to thank you once again for

         19  coming out here. The issue at hand is very simple.

         20  The issue simply is that the Department of

         21  Transportation has not looked at the balance that is

         22  required, a balance between the need for pedestrians

         23  to walk safely, and the need for some stores to use

         24  the sidewalk space outside their stores.

         25                 Sidewalks in New York City have a
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          2  very clear purpose. It's fully in the Administrative

          3  Code, and the purpose is to allow people to walk

          4  safely from one point to another. Before cars

          5  proliferated the City of New York, we did not have

          6  sidewalks. After cars came in in large numbers in

          7  New York City, sidewalks were built in New York City

          8  so that people could walk safely from one point to

          9  another.

         10                 To the extent in parts of the City

         11  where there is enough space on our sidewalks to

         12  accommodate the pedestrians, and allow businesses to

         13  use some of the sidewalks space, we should continue

         14  to allow them to do so. But someone has to go out

         15  and look at these situations and make that

         16  determination, and our law requires that the

         17  Department of Transportation go out to that location

         18  and make that determination so that a conscious

         19  decision can be made where it balances the needs of

         20  pedestrians, and the needs of the small business

         21  owners.

         22                 And, finally, this concept of many of

         23  these stores being immigrant run, that's true, that

         24  is absolutely true. This Council has been very

         25  protective, and has advocated strongly for the needs
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          2  of small businesses, but it is also many of the

          3  people in these communities who are immigrants who

          4  are unable to walk safely on those sidewalks, and

          5  those are the very people that we hear from time and

          6  time again.

          7                 And just in my district, although

          8  this is not an issue that's limited to my district,

          9  the Flushing Chinese Business Association has not

         10  only been a strong advocate for this bill, but

         11  they've been pushing me literally for the last two

         12  years to get off my -- well, to get moving so that

         13  we could do something that is harming all of the

         14  other businesses, as well as posing a danger to

         15  pedestrians.

         16                 We're not saying in this bill that

         17  any stoopline stands should be prohibited. What

         18  we're saying, what we're demanding through this

         19  bill, is that the City, the Department of

         20  Transportation, look at the issue, which up until

         21  now they have not done so.

         22                 I want to thank you, once again, for

         23  taking part. We are now going to take a vote of the

         24  Transportation Committee on Intro. 699.

         25                 For procedural purposes, I would like
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          2  to spell out for the Committee that we will be

          3  conducting two votes today. And gentlemen, you're

          4  free to stay, and you're also free to be excused.

          5  The two votes, the first is upon a motion to receive

          6  and file the Mayor's Message M 672, vetoeing Intro.

          7  699, dated September 16th, 2005.

          8                 This is done for the purposes of

          9  completing the record. A yes vote will only mean

         10  that the message is accepted into the official

         11  record of the Council proceedings, and does not

         12  indicate agreement with its contents.

         13                 The second vote will be on the

         14  substantive motion. Shall Intro. No. 699 be

         15  repassed, notwithstanding the objections of the

         16  Mayor. We will now call a vote on the first item

         17  which is to receive and file the Mayor's Message, M

         18  672, vetoeing Intro. 699. Are there any questions

         19  from Committee members?

         20                 I recommend a yes vote on accepting

         21  and filing the Mayor's veto. Will the clerk please

         22  call the roll?

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Liu.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Moskowitz.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Addabbo.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sanders.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Seabrook.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gonzalez.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of seven in

         14  the affirmative --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Well, we will keep

         16  the roll open for additional Committee members who

         17  will be joining us.

         18                 The Committee will now vote on the

         19  following substantive motion.

         20                 Shall Intro. 699 be repassed,

         21  notwithstanding the objections of the Mayor? Again,

         22  I recommend a yes vote on repassing this bill, and

         23  will the clerk now please call the roll.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Liu.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Moskowitz.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Addabbo.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Mr. Chair,

          6  may I be briefly excused to explain my vote?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please do.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

          9  Mr. Chair.

         10                 While I appreciate everyone who has

         11  given testimony on this bill, after hearing all of

         12  the testimony and reading all the testimony, I tend

         13  to agree with the Chair of the simple nature of this

         14  bill. Simply what we're asking for is DOT to do

         15  their job. You know, inspect a site that has been,

         16  again, made an application for a stoopline stands

         17  proposal, or an application, and then if a store

         18  complies, they will be granted their license.

         19                 So, I don't see a problem with any

         20  store who is in compliance, and I don't see this as

         21  hindering any local economy or local store, so,

         22  therefore, I vote yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sanders.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Mr. Chair,
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          2  permission to explain my vote?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Please do.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Thank you,

          5  Mr. Chair.

          6                 I believe that there's a certain

          7  amount of logic here in what you're saying, sir. And

          8  I wish that I heard directly from the Small Business

          9  Community that was represented here today, but I

         10  have read their arguments. Very worthy. But this

         11  bill does not curtail their arguments. It should

         12  not. I don't believe that this is a vote against the

         13  Mayor, if you wish. I think that, I'm hoping that

         14  the process of dialogue will be such that it will

         15  allow us in the next go-around to come up with rules

         16  and regulations that the City can live with.

         17                 I vote yes on this matter.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK: Seabrook.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: I vote yes.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sears.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gonzalez.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of seven in

         25  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no
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          2  abstentions, Intro. 699 is readopted.

          3                 Council Members, please sign the

          4  Committee reports.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Once again, Clerk,

          6  we will keep the roll open for Council members who

          7  will be joining us.

          8                 Thank you very much, and I will now

          9  commence with the joint hearing with the Committee

         10  on Education to discuss and deliberate Intro. 702-A.

         11                 Once again, my name is John Liu, and

         12  I have the privilege of chairing the Transportation

         13  Committee. And today I am honored to have once again

         14  the opportunity to jointly chair a meeting, a

         15  hearing with the Chair of the Education Committee,

         16  Council Member Eva Moskowitz. Again, the agenda of

         17  this hearing is Intro. No. 702-A. This bill,

         18  introduced by Council Member Michael Nelson, would

         19  impose a new safety requirement on school buses and

         20  other motorvehicles engaged in the business of

         21  transporting children to and from school in the City

         22  of New York.

         23                 This bill would required vehicles

         24  under contract with the Department of

         25  Transportation, or the Department of Education, to
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          2  be equipped with an operational two-way radio or

          3  cellular phone that would allow communications with

          4  the driver of that vehicle.

          5                 This bill would also require that

          6  these vehicles be equipped with a tracking device,

          7  such as a global positioning tracking system.

          8                 We expect representatives of DOT and

          9  DOE to update us today on any communication devices

         10  already required in their pupil transportation

         11  contracts. Nonetheless, the reality is that parents

         12  and guardians have experienced and expressed

         13  tremendous frustration in trying to connect on the

         14  phone with personnel from the companies to get

         15  information about the vehicles transporting their

         16  child or children.

         17                 And despite the fact that the DOE and

         18  the DOT administered these vehicle contracts, and

         19  despite the fact that the DOT and the NYPD are

         20  responsible for student safety off school premises,

         21  none of these agencies have had the ability to track

         22  in real time the whereabouts of the driver or

         23  communicate with that driver in real time.

         24                 In the event of an emergency, and

         25  particularly if the bus driver were injured or
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          2  unable to communicate with others, emergency

          3  services workers might not be able to locate a

          4  school bus in order to provide assistance, and that

          5  is a very real concern.

          6                 That's why proposed Intro. 702-A is a

          7  common sense safety measure that would facilitate

          8  rapid communications when an emergency occurs, such

          9  as a bus breakdown or a sick child.

         10                 We are joined in this hearing by

         11  Council Member James Sanders, from Queens, Council

         12  Member Michael Nelson, the prime sponsor of 702-A

         13  from Brooklyn, Council Member Helen Sears from

         14  Queens, Council Member Joe Addabbo from Queens,

         15  Council Member Sara Gonzalez from Brooklyn, and

         16  Council Member Larry Seabrook from the Bronx.

         17                 At this time, it's my pleasure to

         18  turn the floor over to my co-chair for today's

         19  hearing, Council Member Eva Moskowitz.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you,

         21  Council Member Liu, for proposing this joint

         22  hearing. I want to apologize in advance. I can only

         23  stay briefly. I have to run to a meeting.

         24                 I want to just being by saying that I

         25  do think the Department has made some strides in the
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          2  bus contracting situation in general. There were a

          3  number of things that the Committee had asked for,

          4  in terms of training, having to do with matrons and

          5  having to do with parents' ability to reach people

          6  when their kid's bus was late and so forth, and at

          7  least on paper some progress has been made and I

          8  want to thank Marty and Kathleen Grimm, who is not

          9  here, for following up on the concerns of the

         10  Committee.

         11                 But we still hear from a large number

         12  of parents that are concerned about the whereabouts

         13  of their children. There are still issues in terms

         14  of timeliness. And I certainly will read the

         15  Department's testimony. I thank Mike Nelson for

         16  bringing this issue to the fore, and I look forward

         17  to hearing what the Department has to say.

         18                 Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Chair

         20  Moskowitz.

         21                 Now we'd like to have an opening

         22  statement from Council Member Mike Nelson, the

         23  Chair, the sponsor, the author of Intro. 702-A. And

         24  shortly thereafter we will have the testimony from

         25  the Department of Education and Department of
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          2  Transportation.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you,

          4  Chairman Liu, and Chair Moskowitz. I've been trying

          5  to get this on the horizon for years. I'm glad to

          6  see DOE, and the Administration is going along with

          7  this.

          8                 People I speak to can't believe that

          9  this has not been in effect already. Nobody really

         10  knows children are out there and there is no way to

         11  know really for sure where they are. We know they

         12  have a route, but no one knows for sure if that

         13  route will continue, and in fact, if there would be

         14  an accident of some of the mishap.

         15                 There was an incident in my district

         16  about two years ago or more where there was an

         17  accident of a school bus on Flatbush Avenue, just

         18  out of my district, and they had, the driver and the

         19  children had to depend upon the kindness of

         20  strangers, which is great because there was a kind

         21  stranger who rode by and eventually used their cell

         22  phone to call in the accident. But I know everybody

         23  in this room would agree that that is not the way

         24  the City would want to operate.

         25                 Any parents in this room? There
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          2  probably are. And you would like to know that when

          3  your child is in the custody of anyone, any City

          4  agency, especially the Department of Education, that

          5  they would know where your child is at all times.

          6  So, I thank Chair Liu very much for bringing this to

          7  the Committee, and also Chair Moskowitz for being in

          8  a joint Committee hearing, and I appreciate the

          9  opportunity of being able to speak and I'm glad to

         10  be here today.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         13  Member Nelson. I want to thank you as well for

         14  leading the effort to make sure that the safety of

         15  our kids being transported in school buses

         16  throughout the City are of paramount concern, and

         17  certainly the need to be able to communicate with

         18  the driver or the operators of these school buses.

         19  So, this is a particularly timely, timely bill.

         20                 We had what could have been a major

         21  horrific accident on Friday morning where a school

         22  bus overturned on the Major Deegan. Fortunately

         23  everybody on that day was wearing their seatbelts,

         24  and that's yet another issue that our committees

         25  will be exploring in the coming weeks.
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          2                 But it was also good that there was a

          3  way to communicate with the driver of that bus. And

          4  in this day and age, especially when we are facing

          5  dangers, not perceived before, it is of even more

          6  paramount concern that we be able to communicate

          7  with the operators of these school buses.

          8                 We are very happy to be joined by

          9  Marty Oestreicher, the Chief Executive of the School

         10  Support Services of the New York City Department of

         11  Education, and Deputy Commissioner Howard Altschuler

         12  from the Department of Transportation, responsible

         13  for procurement and technical services.

         14                 I want to thank you very much for

         15  joining us and for your patience, while we get some

         16  other matters completed this morning.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 MR. OESTREICHER: Good morning. Thank

         19  you, Chairperson Liu and Moskowitz and members of

         20  the Transportation and Education Committees, for

         21  inviting the Departments of Education and

         22  Transportation to testify regarding Intro. 702-A. I

         23  am Marty Oestreicher, Department of Education's

         24  Chief Executive for the Office of School Support

         25  Services, and with me is Harold Altschuler, Deputy
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          2  Commissioner of Procurement and Technical Services

          3  in the Department of Transportation.

          4                 Both departments recognize that

          5  effective communication is essential for the safety

          6  of the children who ride our school buses.

          7                 Communication systems must be

          8  available for emergencies, but are also required for

          9  non-emergencies, such as reporting traffic delays,

         10  last-minute student pick-up information locating,

         11  bus locations in response to queries. It has been a

         12  longstanding policy in both Departments to require

         13  bus contractors to have a two-way radio on each and

         14  every bus.

         15                 Thus, we are already in compliance

         16  with this portion of the proposed legislation. The

         17  Department of Education Special Education Contract

         18  with its bus vendors has specifically required

         19  two-way radios in 1984. It reads in part all

         20  vehicles being used in the performance of this

         21  contract extension shall be equipped with two-way

         22  radios, approved and licensed by the Federal

         23  Communications Commission, operated on assigned

         24  frequencies.

         25                 Our general education contract
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          2  amendment has the similar provision dating back to

          3  1982. In the Department of Transportation contracts

          4  with its pre-k bus vendors, the section vehicle

          5  specifications reads as follows: Each vehicle used

          6  to perform this contract, including maintenance and

          7  spare vehicles, must be equipped with fully

          8  operational communication devices, for instance,

          9  two-way radios, Nextels, et cetera. Both agencies

         10  have a rigorous safety inspection program.

         11                 As part of these inspections, our

         12  inspectors check to see that every bus is equipped

         13  with a two-way radio. Buses are not allowed to leave

         14  the yard, unless such equipment is on the bus.

         15                 DOE and DOT support the call for the

         16  installation of a geographic positioning system for

         17  our school buses. DOE made the decision to go

         18  forward with the GPS system over a year ago, when

         19  developing our strategy for upgrading school bus

         20  service.

         21                 And last year's state legislative

         22  session, the City submitted legislation that, among

         23  other things, authorized DOE to install a GPS system

         24  on its school buses.

         25                 The Department's new five-year
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          2  contract extension, effective July 1st, 2005,

          3  specifically calls for the installation of such a

          4  system.

          5                 With a GPS system, both DOE and its

          6  contractors, will be able to track the location of

          7  every bus in the system and maintain that data.

          8                 Clearly, this information is critical

          9  in an emergency where we may need to direct buses to

         10  or away from certain areas.

         11                 But it is also an important

         12  operational customer service tool. When parents or

         13  schools are concerned when buses have failed to

         14  arrive, GPS will allow the vendor and our own

         15  customer service unit to immediately locate the

         16  buses in question and directly advise those

         17  concerned.

         18                 It will no longer be necessary for

         19  the depot to radio the driver to determine his or

         20  her location, and then call back a parent or school.

         21                 That information will be readily

         22  available and will be passed on to the caller.

         23                 GPS will also maintain historical

         24  information that will include the times and

         25  locations of every bus. This could be used to
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          2  measure contractor performance, and develop more

          3  effective routes.

          4                 Because of the large number of

          5  contractors, we believe that the proper course of

          6  action is for the Department to design, procure,

          7  implement and maintain the system. This will be to

          8  assure a single system that would meet the complex

          9  requirements of tracking a fleet with over 6,300

         10  buses on the road daily.

         11                 Contractors will be required to

         12  permit the installation of GPS equipment on all

         13  their buses, and to use the system to track their

         14  fleets.

         15                 DOT is also planning to install a GPS

         16  system to track its contractors' buses, and any

         17  contract that the DOE enters into will be available

         18  for use by DOT ensuring a uniformed system without

         19  duplicated effort.

         20                 While the Departments of Education

         21  and Transportation are committed to GPS systems, we

         22  believe the time frame called for in the legislation

         23  is not realistic.

         24                 DOE has begun work on developing RFPs

         25  for a comprehensive GPS system. We have met with the

                                                            33

          1  TRANSPORTATION AND EDUCATION COMMITTEES

          2  MTA, other school districts, and other City agencies

          3  that have implemented or are in the process of

          4  implementing GPS systems.

          5                 For us, GPS is not just a vehicle

          6  tracking mechanism, but a tool for ensuring the

          7  safety of the nearly 200,000 children our agencies

          8  transport every day.

          9                 Based on the experience of the other

         10  transportation agencies, the RFP will be somewhat

         11  complex and will require technical assistance. Our

         12  current expectation is that we will be able to begin

         13  a multiple vendor pilot next summer, with contract

         14  award and the beginning of a full scale deployment

         15  later in the school year. To get it right, we will

         16  need more time than called for in the proposed

         17  legislation.

         18                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         19  testify, and we'd be happy to take your questions.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         21                 Deputy Commissioner Altschuler,

         22  you're here to answer questions without presenting

         23  prepared testimony. Thank you.

         24                 I have a couple of questions, and we

         25  have some questions from Council Members as well.
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          2                 We appreciate what you have done

          3  already. In fact, it's been two years since our

          4  first hearing in Council Member Nelson's initial

          5  bill that would have called for the requirement of

          6  two-way communications devices on school buses, and

          7  we are happy that the Department of Education and

          8  the Department of Transportation has made some

          9  progress towards this goal.

         10                 It is a goal that we will eventually

         11  get to. The main question it seems right now is how

         12  fast, what kind of time frame, can we adhere to, to

         13  make sure that these communications capabilities are

         14  fully implemented and installed in our school buses.

         15                 Basically it sounds like what you're

         16  saying is a year and a half from now instead of the

         17  six months that Council Member Nelson's legislation

         18  calls for?

         19                 MR. OESTREICHER: Yes, our plans, we

         20  could have a pilot -- first of all, let me just step

         21  back and say the two-way radios, that's been a done

         22  deal for quite awhile, and so that's for us not even

         23  a question of implementation. It's been in the buses

         24  for many, many years, and we expect our contracts to

         25  comply with that, and in incidents where they don't,
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          2  we certainly want to know about it, and there would

          3  be penalties against the contractor. But the two-way

          4  radio has been a feature of our school buses I think

          5  at both our agencies for quite some time.

          6                 The GPS system, we're totally in

          7  agreement with you, that's definitely the area we

          8  want to go to. It is somewhat complex. We've talked

          9  to some of the other municipalities, we've talked to

         10  the MTA, who are in the process of doing this, and

         11  it is a fairly complex process. It's not just an

         12  off-the-shelf type of software that we want to get.

         13  We want to get a system that will work, that will be

         14  comprehensive, that will give us historical

         15  information, just a lot of stuff. We will need some

         16  technical assistance. We're in the process of, like

         17  I said, doing the research, but just the nature of

         18  the RFP process, there will probably be two RFPs in

         19  place, it will be very, very difficult to do this

         20  within six months. So, we see as getting the initial

         21  RFP out this year, getting a couple of vendors in to

         22  run a pilot, and to examine and tweak and see which

         23  ones work best, and then to select one of those

         24  vendors and then enter into contract negotiations

         25  with the vendor that we select, and then getting
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          2  registered, and all that other stuff. I just don't

          3  think it's realistic that all that can get done in

          4  six months. But we certainly in terms of our

          5  commitment to the GPS, it's in our state leg that we

          6  passed, it's in our contracts with our current

          7  vendors to have the system implemented and get full

          8  cooperation with that in using the system.

          9                 So, we're totally on board in terms

         10  of having a GPS system installed.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I have a copy of

         12  your contract with regard to the transportation of

         13  special education pupils. And in that it clearly

         14  says that all buses will be equipped with geographic

         15  positioning systems, and back-up cellular emergency

         16  communications. Is that just for the special

         17  education pupils, or is that for all pupils that

         18  your Department transports?

         19                 MR. OESTREICHER: All pupils. Our goal

         20  is to have GPS on all the buses.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Okay. And a year and

         22  a half seems like a long time. Is there any way to

         23  compress it to, if you can't compress it to within a

         24  six-month period, at least compress it to something

         25  that would allow for the beginning of the 2006, 2007
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          2  school year, where we would have children

          3  transported by buses that are equipped with these

          4  communication and positioning devices?

          5                 MR. OESTREICHER: Yes, we would work

          6  with you on this, but our goal is to have the pilot

          7  in this school year. Actually towards the end of

          8  this school year to have, to select two or three

          9  vendors to cover a good portion of the City under a

         10  pilot arrangement, which is what we do in some of

         11  our technical contracts. And we'd want to evaluate

         12  that for a couple of months, that would take us sort

         13  of into the next school year. Then at that point

         14  through the, you know, through the RFP process in

         15  doing it exactly the right way, we'd evaluate and

         16  make our selection, and then you've got to negotiate

         17  the contract and that takes a couple of months, and

         18  then you have to get it registered and so forth. And

         19  we just see that rolling in a little bit into the

         20  next year, but if it was worth it, where would we

         21  start something? We hope to have at least the

         22  beginning, via the pilot, by the end of this school

         23  year.

         24                 So, we will have some GPS in the

         25  buses, but the full-scale uniformed deployment
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          2  Citywide will probably be taken to the next school

          3  year.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: And presumably this

          5  pilot program, the goal of the pilot program would

          6  not be to decide, to determine whether or not such a

          7  system would work for the school buses, but rather

          8  to figure out how best to implement such a system.

          9                 MR. OESTREICHER: Exactly right. To

         10  tweak it, to see -- and also as a selection tool, we

         11  will invite two or three of maybe the best

         12  proposals, and we expect there will be a lot of

         13  interest in GPS for us. But then on the basis of the

         14  performance during the pilot and the word back we

         15  get from all our community, from students, parents,

         16  bus companies, and our own people, we will then make

         17  the selection of one vendor who will carry it

         18  through, if we decide that one vendor is the best

         19  way which we think would make more sense.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         21                 I know Council Member Mike Nelson has

         22  lots of questions for you.

         23                 I will have one final question for

         24  you. Well, not so much a question but more a

         25  comment.
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          2                 I'm not sure that it's absolutely

          3  necessary for you to work so closely with the

          4  Metropolitan Transportation Authority so that you

          5  would have to adhere to their own time frames. I

          6  think the MTA has lots of issues with regard to its

          7  own ability to communicate with all of its workers.

          8  Certainly in the subway system, but I believe

          9  there's an issue with its ability to communicate

         10  with their bus drivers, as well.

         11                 So, I appreciate that you have

         12  thought of asking the MTA for their input, but I ask

         13  you not to rely on them too much to the extent that

         14  they delay your ability to implement the system for

         15  our City's school buses.

         16                 MR. OESTREICHER: I appreciate that.

         17  And they've gone through it, we're getting their

         18  advice. I don't see them as holding us up in anyway.

         19  We've also reached out to other school districts who

         20  have either done it or are in the process of, major

         21  school districts, and I think we can probably learn

         22  just as much from them, because of the specific task

         23  that they're tasked with.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         25                 Council Member Mike Nelson.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you, Mr.

          3  Chair. Why reinvent the wheel. You're right. I'm

          4  glad you're looking outwards. Highest, lowest bidder

          5  is great, too, as long as you know that the

          6  technology is the best we can get for the New York

          7  City kids. I remember one astronaut's mother once

          8  said, I'd hate to think of my kid is subject to the

          9  lowest priced bidder in a $12 O-ring and can do

         10  trouble to a multi-billion dollar spacecraft.

         11                 Hopefully we can truncate the amount

         12  of time, of course, to do this, because the longer

         13  we wait, obviously, the longer there's a possibility

         14  of some danger.

         15                 I do appreciate you don't want to

         16  rush into something and not get the best possible

         17  equipment to service those vehicles as well.

         18                 Well, as Hubert Horatio Humphrey once

         19  said, "I'm pleased as punch" if you're on track for

         20  something that we've really wanted for quite some

         21  time.

         22                 And I guess next stop would be

         23  seatbelts, which is something I've been trying to do

         24  since I've been in these hallowed halls.

         25                 Well, I appreciate your testimony.
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          2  Thank you.

          3                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chair. I

          4  appreciate your tremendous concern in this.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you. Thank

          6  you, Council Member Nelson. And the issue of

          7  seatbelts is something that we will have to address

          8  very, very shortly. So, this Committee would

          9  certainly be very happy to work with you on crafting

         10  legislation that would require seatbelt restraints

         11  in all of our City school buses.

         12                 We've also been joined by Council

         13  Member Leroy Comrie, from Queens. Delighted to have

         14  this Council member.

         15                 We have questions from Council Member

         16  James Sanders, Jr.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SANDERS: Thank you,

         18  Mr. Chair.

         19                 I want to first start by commending

         20  Council Member Nelson on such a far-sweeping

         21  proposed legislation. This is the type of

         22  legislation that can actually calm all of the

         23  parents or many of the parents whose child may be

         24  exceptionally late, but it also, in this strange day

         25  and age, has the ability to perhaps save lives.
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          2  Where this is a strange day and age we're living in.

          3  Twenty years ago problems and concerns that we have

          4  today wouldn't even be considered or considered by

          5  you. It is imperative that we have a way of

          6  communicating because an ounce of prevention, of

          7  course, is worth a pound of cure. And the whole City

          8  stands united in protecting its children, so I have

          9  to commend both of you for being up here as doing

         10  what you're doing, trying to be the proper guardians

         11  of our children.

         12                 So, I wanted to encourage you that a

         13  year sounds a long way off. Heaven forbid we find

         14  ourselves in a situation where a year was too far to

         15  wait, too long to wait. We would all look back at

         16  this moment and say perhaps there could have been

         17  things that we could have done to speed up a

         18  process.

         19                 And I'd rather err on the side of

         20  caution to move mountains and do whatever we need to

         21  do then to look back on a future day in saying, you

         22  know, on hindsight, thinking of it, if we actually

         23  move this or did not do it that way, we could have

         24  made this happen.

         25                 This is one of those smaller pieces
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          2  of legislation that may have an incredible impact. A

          3  piece of legislation that if it works, you'll see

          4  very rarely the impact. But without it, it's a

          5  situation that may cry out why didn't anyone do the

          6  common sense stuff and no one wants to sit in front

          7  of a hearing on that day, or, worse, in front of

          8  parents on that day, and say, well, we just needed a

          9  year to do this, and we didn't have it.

         10                 So, I encourage you to do everything

         11  that you can do to speed this process up.

         12                 Council Member Nelson, I suspect that

         13  it's too late to add one's name to this legislation.

         14  If that is not true, then I'd like you to count me

         15  as one of the people encouraging this move for the

         16  City.

         17                 Thank you, sir. Thank you, gentlemen.

         18  And thank you, Mr. Chair.

         19                 MR. OESTREICHER: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you.

         21                 I'd like to thank the staff of the

         22  Transportation Committee, Mitch Schwartz, and

         23  Roberto Ragone, Phil Hom and John Cho and Elizabeth

         24  Monterosa, and ask them not to forget to add Council

         25  Member James Sanders, Jr. As a sponsor of this bill.
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          2                 Questions from Council Member Helen

          3  Sears.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you, Mr.

          5  Chair.

          6                 You mentioned that you already use

          7  seatbelts, so is that a rule of the agency? Because

          8  what this is doing is legislating seatbelts. Is this

          9  something that you have been implementing, I would

         10  think, for a long time?

         11                 MR. OESTREICHER: I didn't say

         12  anything about seatbelts in the testimony.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Oh. I thought

         14  you said you already use them, or that they are on

         15  the buses?

         16                 MR. OESTREICHER: Two-way radios.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Oh, but I

         18  thought you mentioned seatbelts.

         19                 MR. OESTREICHER: No.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Did I

         21  misunderstand you?

         22                 MR. OESTREICHER: I think the Chairman

         23  mentioned the seatbelts.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Oh, I

         25  apologize. So, you do not, it's not within your
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          2  regulations that they have to have seatbelts?

          3                 MR. OESTREICHER: It's not on the

          4  general education buses.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Council Member

          7  Sears, that is an issue that is --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I'm sorry. I

          9  was a little confused about that. I thought that he

         10  had mentioned it, and that needs clarification.

         11                 Also, what constitutes a large bus?

         12  Because they mention a large bus. I don't know what

         13  that means in terms of a seat capacity.

         14                 MR. OESTREICHER: I'm sorry, could you

         15  repeat that?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: What seat

         17  capacity constitutes a large bus, because it's

         18  genuinely a large bus, as opposed to a smaller bus.

         19                 MR. OESTREICHER: Smaller buses hold

         20  up to about 20 kids. Twenty children on the smaller

         21  buses. Or anything above that would be in the larger

         22  buses.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: So the larger

         24  buses are 20 to, what's the maximum?

         25                 MR. OESTREICHER: I could see it to
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          2  the high forties.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay. Is there

          4  an objection to having seatbelts mandated on the

          5  buses? You didn't address it.

          6                 MR. OESTREICHER: Right now we are in

          7  compliance with the State law regarding seatbelts.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And what is the

          9  State law.

         10                 MR. OESTREICHER: The State law I

         11  believe requires buses built after a certain year

         12  have the seatbelts on them. But there is no, and,

         13  again, I'm talking general education, special

         14  education children wear seatbelts on the smaller

         15  buses, but there is no requirement in under the

         16  State law that children have to wear the seatbelts

         17  on the larger general ed buses.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: You know,

         19  that's such a conflict for the state because I get a

         20  ticket if I don't have my seatbelt on. It's a state

         21  law that everybody has to have a seatbelt when

         22  they're driving a car.

         23                 MR. OESTREICHER: Council member, I

         24  don't know if I really want to -- I wasn't prepared

         25  to get into the details of seatbelts today.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: If I may interject

          3  just one second?

          4                 Hold on, Mr. Oestreicher.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: That's just a

          6  comment. I'm not asking.

          7                 MR. OESTERICHER: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: If I may just

          9  interject for a second. We will hold hearings on the

         10  issue of seatbelts and school buses. There is a

         11  myriad of issues related to the requirement of

         12  seatbelts and we will, that kind of hearing will

         13  necessitate the right people at the DOT, as well as

         14  the Department of Education, which may very well be

         15  these two gentlemen sitting right here, since

         16  they're expert in everything. But we will also have

         17  experts from children's hospitals, health care

         18  providers that will provide us with invaluable

         19  expertise.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Oh, all right.

         21                 If I may just conclude, I would agree

         22  with you for the extension of time, just how much

         23  time that is, because it's very complicated to put

         24  RFPs and to have a pilot project I think is

         25  something that is doable, because we're talking
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          2  about Citywide. Perhaps you may get back to the

          3  Committee, both Committees, as to how much time you

          4  really think -- you said a year and a half. Now, is

          5  that extending, is that optimism, or is it extending

          6  what may be a reasonable time? So, maybe you might

          7  want to look at that.

          8                 MR. OESTREICHER: I'd be glad to work

          9  with the staff.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: With respect to

         11  my colleagues, I think six months is a very short

         12  period in which to have such a compliance.

         13                 MR. OESTREICHER: We would be glad to

         14  work with Council Member Nelson. We have in the

         15  past, and we'll go over it and we'll show you what

         16  our thinking is on that, and we'll certainly, as

         17  Council Member Sanders suggested, work as fast as

         18  possible and make this a priority project for us.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: But it does

         20  take time to do.

         21                 MR. OESTREICHER: It does. RFPs do

         22  take time, and we're talking two RFPs in this

         23  process.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And selecting a

         25  system that also would work.
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          2                 MR. OESTREICHER: Right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Throughout the

          4  City.

          5                 MR. OESTREICHER: Yes. Technically.

          6  This GPS, it's software, it's hardware, it's

          7  communications equipment, it's several -- how even

          8  you want to do it, you want to have separate

          9  companies do that, and program manage it yourself,

         10  have one program manager. There are a lot of things

         11  in a GPS.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: And you don't

         13  do that very quickly. So, all right. And that maybe

         14  will work out.

         15                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you, Council

         17  Member Sears.

         18                 Council Member Nelson.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you,

         20  again, Mr. Chair.

         21                 Actually, I think we're going towards

         22  the codification, as opposed to just standard

         23  operating procedure. This is probably the main

         24  reason, the thrust, that we're here, and to ensure

         25  that of course it happens in all good time as well.
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          2  I realize there is complexities, of course, with

          3  seatbelts. Again, as I mentioned, for six years

          4  since I've been here, I've been trying to get this

          5  off the ground. And I know the Chair has as well.

          6  So, hopefully we can fasten our seatbelts and

          7  hopefully start moving forward at a fast speed, so

          8  the children can have those same seatbelts.

          9                 I thank you again, Mr. Chair.

         10                 Thank you, Marty.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: I certainly

         12  appreciate the comments from Council Member Nelson.

         13  And I would say that, in fact, it is because of

         14  Council Members' initial introduction and a hearing

         15  that we held two years ago, that certainly has

         16  contributed to the time frame that the City has

         17  undertaken to get these communications and tracking

         18  devices in our school buses. And notwithstanding the

         19  efforts already being made by the City and

         20  particularly by those departments, codification of

         21  these requirements would only be a very sound and

         22  loud approval of what you're doing, because we

         23  certainly trust you, although we may not necessarily

         24  trust future administrations and future people in

         25  charge of these two departments and in charge of
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          2  transporting our kids.

          3                 My last question for you is that,

          4  I've heard recently that, well, we had called about

          5  a year ago for the two Departments, the

          6  Transportation Department and the Education

          7  Department, to consolidate the operations of school

          8  buses in our City. Because right now there are

          9  different operations that each of your departments

         10  are responsible for. Is headway being made on that?

         11                 MR. OESTREICHER: Yes, it certainly

         12  came up at the last hearing we had before your

         13  Committee.

         14                 Last couple months, of course, the

         15  beginning of the school year, we were overwhelmed

         16  and each of our operations is getting schools off to

         17  a smooth start and running. But we have started some

         18  discussions at the staff level to understand what

         19  each other's operations are all about.

         20                 So, no decision has been made, but

         21  there has been some movement towards getting the

         22  information we would need to reach such a decision.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you very much.

         24  And I certainly commend the Administration and your

         25  Departments for moving quickly along this, because
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          2  consolidate operations not only mean safer

          3  operations for our kids, but also more streamlined

          4  and more efficient operations.

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 I was remiss before in not

          7  acknowledging the fine work and efforts of the

          8  legislative counsel to the Education Committee, Mr.

          9  Mark Goldey. Thank you very much, Mark, for all your

         10  efforts.

         11                 There being no other testimony for

         12  this hearing, this joint hearing of the Education

         13  and Transportation Committees is adjourned.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 11:05 a.m.)
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